INTRODUCTION 


Appellants, Nancy M. Sostaric (hereinafter "Nancy") and Stjepan Sostaric (hereinafter "I"), 

submit this as their Brief in support of their appeal to reverse the decision ofthe trial court, 

granting summary judgment, to Appellee, Sally Marshall. 

ASSIGNMENT OF ERRORS 

1. 	 The Trial Court erred in granting reconsideration of the Appellee's Motion for Summary 

Judgment. As a result, its initial decision, denying summary judgment, should be restored. 

2. 	 The Trial Court erred in granting summary judgment to Appellee, as there were issues of 

salient facts, which needed to be resolved by a trial. 

3. 	 Appellee's own email evidences that she was receiving full value from her purchase of 

the property and was thus unduly enriched. 

SUMMARY OF THE ARGUMENT 

The trial court, after this case was reversed and returned by The Court ofAppeals, 

originally denied Appellee's Motion for Summary Judgment. However, Appellee filed a motion 

to reconsider. The trial court granted the motion to reconsider, even though that decision was 

contrary to this Court's decisions on the granting of this type of motion. Furthermore, Appellant 

Nancy presented an expert opinion appraisal that showed that there was minimal increase, if any, 

in the value ofthe property over a span of five years. This report stated that the property value 

should have triggered the trial court requiring a trial on this issue. Finally, Appellee has been 

receiving economic benefit from the usage of the property, which she obtained at a tax sale. As a 

result, she has been unjustly enriched. 

STANDARD OF REVIEW 

This Court, in the earlier appellate decision in this case, Sostaric v. Marshall, 766 S. E. 

2d 396, 399 (W.V. 2014) (hereinafter "Sostaric I") aptly noted that the trial court's decision to 

grant a summary judgment motion should be done only when it is clear that there is no genuine 

issue of fact to be tried and inquiry concerning the facts is not desirable to clarify the application 

of the law. This court must conduct a new review of the lower court's decision granting 
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summary judgment. This court's review will show that there are issues of salient fact that require 

atrial. 

F ACTS OF THE CASE 

This court is respectfully referred to Sostaric I at pages 397- 400 setting forth the facts of 

this case. 

PROCEEDINGS TO DATE 

This Court rendered its decision on November 14, 2014. I As can be seen from the docket 

sheet (Designated Record pages 00064-00136), there were numerous pleadings and orders filed 

since that time. 

Appellee moved for summary judgement (Designated Record page 00066.) Nancy and I 

filed separate oppositions to the motion (Designated Record pages 00067-00069). The Circuit 

Court issued an order denying the Appellee's motion for summary judgement (Designated 

Record pages 00085-00086), as Nancy had filed a response with an attached appraiser's report 

(Designated Record pages 00082-00084). Appellee filed a motion to reconsider (Designated 

Record pages 00087-00089) arguing that the court made an error in accepting the appraiser's 

report as evidence of an issue of fact. Both Nancy and I filed oppositions to the motion 

(Designated Record pages 106-109). Nancy again referenced the appraiser's report (Designated 

Record pages 00106-00107). Though the Court then issued an order, with a caption denying the 

motion for summary judgement, the Court held that the expert's report was not proper and, in the 

last paragraph granted the motion (Designated Record pages 00110-00122). The Court later 

corrected a typographical misstate and amended the decision correcting the caption (Designated 

Record pages 00123-00132). I, individually and on behalf of Nancy, filed an appeal, stating that 

the trial court erred in granting summary judgment to the Appellee (Designated Record pages 

00135-00136). 

lit appears that WVC 38-1-7 enacted after this Court's decision, statutorily reversed the decision in this matter. 
However, it is also clear that the legislation was not to be applied retroactive but only prospective. State ex. Rei 
Ocwen Loan Servicing LLC. v. Webster, 752 S. E. 2d 371 (WV 2013). As a result, the case law of Sostaric I governs 
this case and still applies. 
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ARGUMENT 


THE TRIAL ERRED IN ALLOWING "RECONSIDERATllON" 


Appellee on December 21, 2015 filed a Motion to Reconsider (Designated Record pages 

00087-00089) the trial court's denial of her motion for summary judgment. She did not set forth 

any procedural basis for her motion. She simply argued that the court erred in accepting the 

expert's appraisal analysis. 

The eventual granting of the Motion to Reconsider was procedurally wrong. There is 

technically no such motion under Rule 59. To grant a motion, whether to alter, amend, etc. 

requires a lot. The making of such a motion is an extraordinary remedy and must be used 

sparingly, Pacific Insurance Cpo V American National Fire Ins. 148 F, 3d 403(4th Cir, 1998). 

To have this type ofmotion granted, there must be "an intervening change in the controlling law, 

new evidence not previously available, a remedy of clear error and/or to prevent obvious 

injustice," Adams v. Bluestone Coal, 13-0077 at 4 (WV. 2014). 

The Court's decision of December 15, 2015 (Designated Record pages 00085-00086) 

should have stood, as there was no change in the law for this case, no new evidence, nor 

evidence of clear error or obvious injustice. It was simply a decision that held correctly that there 

was an issue of triable fact as to what was the value of the property at the time of the sale of the 

property for past due taxes. As a result, that decision should have remained in place. 

THERE WAS A TRIABLE ISSUE OF SALIENT FACT 

Civil Procedure Rule 56 is designed to effect prompt decisions of controversies without 

the need for a lengthy trial. The Trial Court in confronting the mandated requirements of this 

Court's ruling in Sostaric I posited that there was a need for a determination ofthe true market 

property value at the time of the foreclosure (Designated Record pages 00077-00079). As a 

result, it requested that Nancy and I submit some form of documentation of appraised value. 

The appraiser's report clearly stated that the property was valued at $149,000 as of 

November 12,2015 (Designated Record pages 00082-00084). Most importantly the report 
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clearly stated, "Generally over the past five years the market has been in decline with foreclosure 

properties holding down values. Recently with historic low interest rates there is buyer activity 

which has brought back some stability in the marketplace but no indication of increased property 

values can be measured yet." 

An obvious reading of the appraisal, which the Court did in its original order (Designated 

Record pages 00085-00086) shows that the value was about the same for the five years, prior to 

the issuance of the report, meaning from 2010 to 2015. It did not require a leap oflogic to posit, 

as the judge originally did in his initial order denying summary judgment, that there was an 

obvious issue of salient fact, as presented by the appraisal. However, in its decision on June 6, 

2015, the Court held that there was no appropriate evidentiary proof of value. The Judge failed to 

accept that Nancy did submit an analysis showing quite clearly that valuations remained constant 

over a period of five years. This failure to accept, for summary judgment purposes, the expert's 

analysis was erroneous and requires this Court, after undertaking its own review, to reverse the 

decision of the Circuit Court. 

APPELLEE'S OWN EMAIL SHOWS THAT SHE RECEIVING FULL VALUE FOR 

THE NOTE 


In her original response to the first summary judgment motion in Sostaric I (Designated 

Record pages 00075-00076), Appellee attached an interesting email, which truly sets forth the 

applicable and relevant facts. The purchase price for the property was unpaid property taxes and 

not foreclosure on the mortgage. Instead of seeking foreclosure on the note, Appellee purchased 

the property for the value of the tax liens. As a result, and has been argued in the past, Appellee 

accepted the payment of the tax liens as a payment in full for the note. 

CONCLUSION 

The Appellants respectfully request that the decision of the trial court be reversed with respect to 

its granting of summary judgment to Appellee.