In the Supreme Court ofAppeals ofWest Virginia 


Docket No. 16-0685 


NANCYMCCOY SOSTARIC AND STJ"EPAN-SOSTARIC, 
Petitioners 

V.) 

SALLY MARSHALL, 
Respondent 

Appeal from a final Order 

of the Circuit Court of Morgan County (12-C-160) 


SUMTYIARY RESPONSE 

Now comes the respondent, Sally Marshall, pro se, and pursuant to Rule 10 (e) of the 
Revised Rules ofAppellate Procedure and a Scheduling Order from this Honorable Court, files 
the following response.

STATEMENT OF THE CASE 

On November 12,2014, The West Virginia Supreme Court ofAppeals reversed and 
remanded the Circuit Court Order ofJanuary 16,2014 granting Plaintiff judgment in the amount 
of $175,407.45 as well as attorney fees and post judgment interest. Sostaric v. Marshall, 234 
W.Va. 449, 458, 766. S.E.2d 396,405 (2014). The Court ofAppeals remanded this matter to 
the Circuit Court in accordance with the new rule it promulgated in its decision holding that a 
trustee grantor may assert, as a defense in a lawsuit seeking a deficiency judgment that the fair 
market value ofthe secured real property was not obtained in a foreclosure sale. In making this 
finding the Court overruled Syllabus Point.4 ofFayette County National Bank v. Lilly, 199 WV 
349,484, S.E. 2d 232 (1997). It determined ifthe fair market value was more than the 
foreclosure sale price the deficiency defendant is entitled to an offset against the deficiency in 
the amount by which the fair market value less the amount ofany liens on the real estate that 
were not extinguished by the foreclosure, exceed the sale price. Further the court held this 
determination of fair market value is not self-executing instead a defendant must request this 
determination. The court noted that there was no contention that the trust deed of sale was 
invalid or defective. In its review ofthe record, it found that the foreclosure procedure and sale 
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complied with West Virginia law and the title to the foreclosed property was legally conveyed to 
the Plaintiff. The Court directed the defendants, ifthey so desired, to assert the defense ofusing 
the fair market value price ofthe property at the time ofthe foreclosure sale rather than the 
foreclosure sale price in computing the deficiency judgment amount. It is noted that this decision 
inSostaric v.Marshall has been statutorily reversed by WVC 38-1-7 in 2015. 

On June 17,2015 Plaintiff Marshall filed a new D1otion for summary-juClgment alleging that 
Defendants had not raise the fair market value defense or any other defense or pleadings in the 
six months since the remand from the Court. On July 15, 2015,Defendants filed their responses 
in opposition to Plaintiffs motion for summary judgment but offered no evidence in support of 
that claim. On October 9,2015, the Circuit Court held Plaintiffs motion for summary judgment 
in abeyance for 30 days to afford the pro se Defendants the opportunity to supplement their 
response. While both defendants supplemented their response neither contained expert witness 
evidence regarding the fair market value ofthe property at the time ofthe foreclosure sale. 
Defendant Nancy McCoy Sostarics response contained expert witness evidence regarding the 
fair market value ofthe property as ofNovember 12,2015, over three years after the date ofthe 
foreclosure sale. 

On December 15,2015 the Court entered its Order Denying Plaintiff's Motion for Summary 
Judgment and on January 3, 2016 Plaintiff filed a Motion for Reconsideration ofthe Order. 

On June 21, 2016 the Circuit Court granted judgment in favor ofthe Plaintiff in the amount of 
$175,407.45 as well as attorney fees and post judgment interest. On July 20, 2016, Defendants 
flled a Notice ofAppeals in this matter and filed the Petitioner's Brief on October 22,2016. 

ASSIGNMENTS OF ERROR 

1. THE CIRCUIT COURT ERRED IN GRANTING RECONSIDERATION OF 
THE APPELLE'S MOTION FOR SUMMARY JUDGMENT. AS A RESULT, ITS 
ORGINAL DECISION, DENYING SUMMAARY JUDGMENT SHOULD BE 
RESTORED. 

2. THE CIRCUIT COURT ERRED IN GRANTING SUMMARY JUDGMENT 
TO APPLELLEE, AS THERE WERE ISSUES OF SALIENT FACTS, WHICH 
NEEDED TO BE RESOVED BY ATRIAL. 

3. APPELLEE'S OWN EMAIL EVIDENCE THAT SHE WAS RECEMNG 
FULL VALUE FROM HERPURSHASE OF THE PROPERTY AND WAS THUS 
UDULY ENRICHED. 
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ARGUMENT 


1. THE CIRCUIT COURT ERRED IN GRANTING RECONSIDERATION OF 
THE APPELLE'S MOTION FOR SUMMARY JUPGMENT. AS A RESULT, ITS 
ORGINAL DECISION, DENYING SUMMARY JUDGMENT SHOULD BE 
RESTORED.____ 

The Circuit Court properlygranted the Motion for Reconsideration in order to remedy a 
clear error offact. [See Adam v. Bluestone Coal, 13 - 0077 at 4 [WV. 2014.] It was the 
finding of the Circuit Court that it may revise any order as long as the court has 
jurisdiction over the case. It possesses the inherent procedural power to reconsider, 
resend or modify an interlocutory order for cause seen by it to be sufficient. Hubbard v. 
State Farm Indem. Co., 213 WV. 542, 584 S .E. -2nd 176 (2003). 

The Order denying plaintiffs Motion for Summary Judgment of 15 December 2015 
contained a clear error in the Findings of Fact # 18. It stated that defendant Nancy 
McCoy Sostaric supplemented her response with expert witness evidence about the fair 
market value ofthe property at the time ofthe foreclosure proceedings. The Motion for 
Reconsideration identified the error that the expert witness evidence submitted was at 
the fair market value as of November 2015. By granting the Motion for Reconsideration 
the Court remedied and corrected the error. Therefore it would be inappropriate to 
restore the original decision based on factual error. 

2. THE CIRCUIT COURT ERRED IN GRANTING SUMMARY JUDGMENT 
TO APPLELLEE, AS THERE WERE ISSUES OF SALIENT FACfS, WHICH 
NEEDED TO BE RESOVED BY A TRIAL. 

The West Virginia Supreme Court ofAppeals remanded this matter to the Circuit Court 
when it held a trust deed grantor may assert as a defense in a lawsuit seeking a 
deficiency judgment that the fair market value of the secured real propertywas not 
obtained at a trustee foreclosure sale. It stated a fair market value determination in the 
lawsuit seeking a deficiency judgment following a trust deed foreclosure sale must be 
asserted by the deficiency defendant. Unless the deficiency defendant request such a 
determination, the foreclosure sale price rather than the property fair market value will 
be used to compute that deficiency. 

In this case the Circuit Court determined that the Sostarics did not offer any evidence as 
to the fair market value of the property at the time ofthe foreclosure sale. Instead the 
expert opinions submitted valued the property as ofNovember 12, 2015. The foreclosure 
sale occurred on October 17 2012. The court determined they could not consider the 
value of the property from any time other than the October 17, 2012 date. Since the 
defendants failed to bring forth any evidence of the value of the property at the time of 
the foreclosure sale, the court determined that the fair market value defense was not 
effectively raised. There is no issue of a material fact for trial left in this matter, finding 
an absence ofan effective fair market defense. 



It is also noted that the decision in Sostaric v. Marshall has been statutorily reversed by WVC 
38-1-7 in 2015. Therefore, a trust deed grantor may not assert as a defense in a lawsuit 
seeking a deficiency judgment that the fair market value of the secured real property was 
not obtained at a trustee foreclosure sale. Since the foreclosure sale price is the legal 
offset of calculating a deficiency judgment, there is no issue of fact to be resolved by 
trial.- -- -- --

3. APPELLEE'S OWN EMAIL EVIDENCE THAT SHE WAS RECEIVING 
FULL VALUE FROM HER PURSHASE OF THE PROPERTI AND WAS THUS 
UDULY ENRICHED. 

Petitioner offers no fact or evidence but simply states that Marshall received full value 
from her purchase of the property or was unduly enriched according to emails. The 
referenced email of September 17, 2012 from Rick Pill, the foreclosure lawyer simply 
informed Marshall that there are outstanding liens and unpaid property taxes that will 
need to be considered or paid and would effect the bidding process. The October 15, 
2012 email from Petitioner restated that there were liens on the property and warned 
that sale proceeds may be" little or nothing" and proposed that the foreclosure sale be 
cancelled. 

Even ifevidence were offered the issue is not material to the appeal. Petitioner 
maintains that the purchase price for the property was unpaid property taxes and not 
foreclosure on the mortgage. And that Marshall purchased the property for the value 
with tax liens. This statement is contrary to facts and the finding of the Court in Sostaric 
v. Marshall. The court found that the foreclosure sale was held in accordance to all West 
Virginia law. The only issue relevant to this appeal case is the method used in computing 
a deficiency judgment. Since the Sostarics failed to present any evidence of fair market 
value, the court must continue to use the foreclosure sale price in computing a 
deficiency judgment. 

CONCLUSION 
The Circuit Court's Order Granting Summary Judgment should be upheld, and 

this matter should not be remanded for further proceedings.